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Operating Report  
For the year ended 30 June 2023 

The members of the National Executive present their Operating report together with the financial report of Shop, 
Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (‘the Association’) for the financial year ended 30 June 2023 and the 
auditor’s report thereon. 

1. Membership 
Membership of the Association as at 30 June 2023 was 200,317 (2022: 209,528). 

Persons eligible to do so under the rules of the Association were actively encouraged to join the Association. 
Pursuant to s174 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (“RO Act”) and in accordance with Rule 27 
of the Association, members have the right to resign from the Association by written notice to the appropriate 
Branch of the Association. 

2. Committee of management  
The members of the National Executive of the Association at any time during or since the end of the financial 
year are: 

Name Experience 

Mr Michael Donovan 
National President 

National Executive Member since 1996 
National Vice President 2014-2018 
National President since November 2018 

Ms Barbara Nebart 
National Vice President 

National Executive Member since 2004 
National Vice President since November 2018 

Mr Gerard Dwyer 
National Secretary-Treasurer 

National Executive Member since 2005 
National President 2008-2014 
National Secretary-Treasurer since 2014 

Ms Julia Fox 
National Assistant Secretary 

National Executive Member since 2016 
National Assistant Secretary since 2016 

Mr Paul Griffin (retired) National Executive Member (1990-2022) 

Mr Joel Tynan National Executive Member since 2022 

Mr Josh Peak National Executive Member since 2019 

Mr Bernie Smith National Executive Member since 2014 

Mr Chris Gazenbeek National Executive Member since 2014 

Mr Peter O’Keeffe (resigned) National Executive Member (2014-2023) 

Mr Ben Harris National Executive Member since 2023 
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Operating Report (continued) 
3. Affiliations & Directorships  

The Association, through its Branches, is affiliated with the Australian Labor Party (“ALP”).  Delegates were 
credentialled to various state and national meetings of the ALP.  The National Secretary-Treasurer is a member of 
the ALP National Executive and the Australian Labor Advisory Council. 

The Association is affiliated with the Australian Council of Trade Unions (“ACTU”).   The National Secretary-
Treasurer is Senior Vice President of the ACTU, and a director of ACTU Trustee companies ACTU Member 
Connect Pty Ltd and The Union Education Foundation Limited.  Three other representatives of the Association are 
also members of the ACTU Executive. Officials of the Association are active on a range of ACTU Committees, 
including finance, governance, tax, health and safety, women, vocational education and training, workers capital, 
international and industrial legislation. 

The Association is affiliated to Union Network International (“UNI”).  Various officials of the Association hold elected 
positions within UNI.  The National Secretary-Treasurer is Vice President of UNI-APRO. The National Secretary-
Treasurer is President of UNI-APRO Commerce Sector. The National Assistant Secretary is Vice President of UNI 
World Women’s Committee.  

4. Principal activities 
The Association maintained its industrial awards and agreements and produced a range of publications for its 
members.  

During the Coronavirus pandemic the Association has worked to protect the health and safety, and financial 
security, of essential retail, online retail, warehousing, fast food, and pharmacy workers who have continued to 
work tirelessly at the frontline. 

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Association continued with its significant campaign on Customer Violence 
& Abuse in Retail and Fast Food, called “No One Deserves A Serve”.  This campaign produced a range of materials 
to address the increased levels of customer abuse and violence, including sexual harassment by customers, 
experienced by SDA members. The Association continues to engage with employers, employer associations and 
safety regulators on developing preventative measures to reduce the harm caused by customer abuse and 
violence.  

In October 2021, the Association released a significant research report: “Challenges of work, family and care. Who 
Cares? A Fair share of work and care” which was done in partnership with the UNSW Social Policy Research 
Centre. The report details the work life collision that retail and fast-food workers experience when trying to manage 
work with their care responsibilities. The Association has engaged extensively on this important research both here 
and internationally with industry, employers, unions, civil society, and state and federal governments.  

The Association continues to focus and engage on sustainability, particularly in relation to labour rights and the 
Sustainable Development Goals of Decent Work and Gender Equality.  

The Association’s bargaining agenda continues with a range of retail companies including Bunnings, Harris Scarfe, 
Big W and more which are either in or have concluded bargaining. Multiple EBA’s have been secured for members 
in warehousing this financial year. 

The Association continues to pursue multiple underpayment claims, including a Federal Court action against 
McDonalds.   The Association continues to defend and improve penalty rates for unsociable hours in Awards (eg 
the Hair and Beauty Award) and in bargaining. The SDA continues to protect other entitlements from attack by 
employers.  
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Statement of Financial Position   
As at 30 June 2023 

   
  2023 2022 

 Note $ $ 

 Assets    
 Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,113,644 1,249,055 
 Trade and other receivables 11 631,440 268,369 
 Other financial assets 12 26,345,266 28,047,863 
 Total current assets  28,090,350 29,565,287 
     
 Property, plant and equipment 14 1,374,955 1,054,336 
 Investment property 15 31,500,000 31,500,000 
 Employee benefits 17 - 327,869 
 Total non-current assets  32,874,955 32,882,205 
     
 TOTAL ASSETS  60,965,305 62,447,492 
     
 Liabilities    
 Trade and other payables 16  482,946 864,271 
 Employee benefits 17 1,443,784 1,208,038 
 Contract liability 21 3,244,611 3,325,604 
 Total current liabilities  5,171,341 5,397,913 
     
 Employee benefits 17 32,255 44,614 
 Total non-current liabilities  32,255 44,614 
     
 TOTAL LIABILITIES  5,203,596 5,442,527 
     
 NET ASSETS  55,761,709 57,004,965 
     
 Equity    
 Retained earnings   55,761,709 57,004,965 
 TOTAL EQUITY  55,761,709 57,004,965 

 
 
The notes on pages 14 to 57 are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Surplus or Deficit and Other Comprehensive Income 
 

For the year ended 30 June 2023   

Note 
2023 

$ 
2022 

$ 
 Revenue    
 Affiliation fees                                                                            21 6,570,215 5,553,502 
 Rental income 15(a) 1,367,064 1,322,687 
 Total revenue   7,937,279 6,876,189 
     

 53 Queen St, Melbourne – fair value increment 15(a) - 684,113 
 Other income 6 862,008 1,541,697 
 Total other income  862,008 2,225,810 
 Total income  8,799,287 9,101,999 
 Expenditure    
 53 Queen St, Melbourne - direct operating expenses 15(a) 845,157 753,630 
 53 Queen St, Melbourne – fair value decrement 15(a) 426,442 - 
 ACTU levies 21 120,000 181,818 
 Advertising  79,560 208,747 
 Affiliation fees 21 2,451,610 2,461,534 
 Audit fees 22 47,823 44,552 
 Depreciation 14 206,696 142,923 
 Grants or donations 8 253,122 1,880,521 
 Legal costs 9 1,619,890 1,136,765 
 Administration expenses 7 989,375 281,206 
 Information communications technology  568,019 991,654 
 Other expenses 13 747,235 1,066,623 
 Personnel expenses 18 2,844,684 2,638,175 
 Travel expenses  152,373 52,111 
 Total Expenses  11,351,986 11,840,259 

 Result from Operating Activities   (2,552,699) (2,738,260) 
     

 
Finance income/ (costs) 
Interest income and distributions 23b 92,009 885,467 

 Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments - fair value through profit or loss 12 1,560,231 (2,745,733) 

 Total net finance income/ (costs)  1,652,240 (1,860,266) 
     

 Income tax expense 4(m) - - 
       Surplus / (deficit) for the year  (900,459) (4,598,526) 
     

 Other comprehensive income    
 Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss    
 Re-measurement of defined benefit asset (loss)/gain 17 (342,797) 251,412 
 Income tax on other comprehensive income  - - 
 Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss  - - 
 Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax  (342,797) 251,412 
 TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD  (1,243,256) (4,347,114) 
The notes on pages 14 to 57 are an integral part of these financial statements.  
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2023 

 

 

Note 
 

Retained 
earnings 

$ 

Total equity 

$ 

    
    
Balance at 1 July 2022  57,004,965 57,004,965 
    
Total comprehensive income for the period    
Surplus / (deficit) for the period  (900,459) (900,459) 
Other comprehensive income    
Re-measurement of defined benefit asset, net of tax 17 (342,797) (342,797) 
Total comprehensive income for the period  (1,243,256) (1,243,256) 
    
Transactions with members of the Association, recognised 
directly in equity  

- - 

Balance at 30 June 2023  55,761,709 55,761,709 

    
    

  

Retained 
earnings Total equity 

  $ $ 
    
Balance at 1 July 2021  61,352,079 61,352,079 

    
Total comprehensive income for the period    
Surplus / (deficit) for the period  (4,598,526) (4,598,526) 
Other comprehensive income    
Re-measurement of defined benefit asset, net of tax 17 251,412 251,412 
Total comprehensive income for the period  (4,347,114) (4,347,114) 

    
Transactions with members of the Association, recognised 
directly in equity  

- - 

Balance at 30 June 2022  57,004,965 57,004,965 
  
  The notes on pages 14 to 57 are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2023 

 Note 2023 2022 

  
$ $ 

Cash flows from operating activities      
Cash receipts from operations    
Cash receipts from other reporting units 19b 7,787,856 8,586,676 
Cash receipts from other sources  1,515,022 1,983,070 
Total cash receipts from operations  9,302,878 10,569,746 
    
Cash payments used in operations    
Cash paid to suppliers  (9,672,283) (9,997,944) 
Cash paid to employees  (1,495,848) (1,490,948) 
Cash paid to other reporting units 19b (671,110) (649,794) 
Total cash payments used in operations  (11,839,241) (12,138,686) 
    
Cash used in operations  (2,536,363) (1,568,940) 
Interest, dividends & capital gains received  77,942 885,867 
    
Net cash used in operating activities 19a (2,458,421) (683,073) 

  
  

Cash flows from investing activities    
Proceeds from term deposits  2,800,000 1,900,000 
(Acquisition of) /proceeds from managed funds  462,828 (627,274) 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 14 (535,275) (356,549) 
Acquisition of fixtures and fittings for investment property 15 (426,442) (315,887) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  21,899 377 
Net cash from investing activities  2,323,010 600,667 

  
  

Cash flows from financing activities    
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities  - - 

  
  

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (135,411) (82,406) 
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July  1,249,055 1,331,461 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE 10/19a 1,113,644 1,249,055 

 
 
The notes on pages 14 to 57 are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
1. Reporting entity        

Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees' Association (the ‘Association’) is an Association domiciled in Australia. The 
address of the Association’s registered office is Level 6, 53 Queen Street, Melbourne. The financial report of the 
Association for the financial year ended 30 June 2023 comprises the National Account and the International Fund. 
The Association is a not-for-profit entity and primarily is involved in retail trade union activities.   

2. Basis of preparation              
 

a) Statement of compliance 
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements and have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board 
(‘AASB’) that apply for the reporting period, and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act).  

The financial statements were approved by the National Executive on the 12th day of September 2023. 

b) Basis of measurement 
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with the historical cost, 
except for the following material items in the statement of financial position: 

• investment property and investment in managed fund are measured at fair value; and 
• the defined benefit asset is recognised as the net total of the fair value of plan assets, plus unrecognised 

past service cost and unrecognised actuarial losses, less unrecognised actuarial gains and the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation. 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. Except 
where stated, no allowance is made for the effect of changing prices on the results or the financial position.  

c) Functional and presentation currency 
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Association’s functional currency. 

 
d) Comparative amounts 

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in 
presentation for the current financial year. 
 

e) Use of estimates and judgements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AASBs requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses.  Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

(i) Judgements 
 
Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on 
the amount recognised in the financial statements is included in the following note: 

• Note 15 – Investment property.    
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
2. Basis of preparation (continued)     

 
e) Use of estimates and judgments (continued) 

 
(ii) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties (continued) 

 
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 
material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following note: 
• Note 17 – Employee benefits.   

 
Measurement of fair values 

 
A number of the Association’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for 
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 

The Association has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.  
Significant fair value measurements are overseen and reviewed regularly, including unobservable inputs and 
valuation adjustments.  If third party information is used to measure fair values, the Association assesses the 
evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements 
of AASBs, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.  
Significant valuation issues are reviewed by the Association’s Audit and Risk Committee.   

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Association uses market observable data as far 
as possible.  Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used 
in the valuation techniques as follows. 

• Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
• Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
• Level 3 – inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs).   

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in different levels of 
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the 
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Association recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred. 

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:  

• Note 12 – Other financial assets 
• Note 15 – Investment property. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
3. New Australian Accounting Standards 

 
a) Adoption of new Australian accounting standards  

No accounting standard has been adopted earlier than the application date stated in the standard. 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the 
following amendments to accounting standards and other changes in accounting policy, which have been 
adopted for the first time this financial year: 

AASB 2020-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements 2018–2020 
and Other Amendments 

The annual improvements amend the following standards: 

• AASB 9 Financial Instruments to clarify that in applying the ‘10 per cent’ test to assess whether to 
derecognise a financial liability, an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the 
borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s 
behalf. 

• AASB 16 Leases (AASB 16) to amend Illustrative Example 13 to remove the illustration of the 
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. 

• Amendments to AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment require an entity to recognise the sales 
proceeds from selling items produced while preparing property, plant and equipment for its intended use 
and the related cost in the profit or loss, instead of deducting the amounts received from the cost of the 
asset. 

• Amendments to AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets clarify which costs an 
entity can include when assessing whether a contract will be onerous. 

 

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of the Association. 

 

b) Future Australian accounting standards requirements  
New standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that were issued prior to the sign-off date and 
are applicable to future reporting periods that are expected to have a future financial impact on the 
Association include: 

AASB 2020-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Classification of Liabilities as 
Current or Non-current 

This Standard amends AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements to clarify requirements for the 
presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial position as current or non-current. For example, the 
amendments clarify that a liability is classified as non-current if an entity has the right at the end of the 
reporting period to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. This 
Standard applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Earlier application is 
permitted. The Association does not expect the adoption of this amendment to have a material impact on its 
financial statements. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant accounting policies 

 
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial 
statements by the Association.   

 
a) Revenue 

 
(i) Affiliation fees 

The following table provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance 
obligations in contracts with customers and the related revenue recognition policies: 
 

Nature and timing of satisfaction of 
performance obligation 

Revenue recognition under AASB 15 and 
AASB 1058 

Affiliation fees are fees received from the Branches 
of the Association in accordance with the rules of 
the Association.  Such fees are referred to as 
affiliation fees in the rules and are calculated as a 
percentage of gross Branch membership income 
and paid annually in March for the financial year for 
accounting purposes. A contract liability is 
recognised for advanced consideration received 
from Branches for which the affiliation services are 
yet to be provided over the relevant service period. 
Refer to Note 21 for details. 

Affiliation fees that are enforceable with 
sufficiently specific performance obligations are 
recognised over the period the service is 
provided which is similar to an accrual basis. 
The consideration received or receivable is 
allocated based on the relative stand-alone price 
to the performance obligation. The stand-alone 
price is determined in accordance with the rules 
of the Association. 

 
AASB 15 uses the terminology ‘Customers’ to describe the source of the revenue. The most significant 
source of revenue for the Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees Association comes from Branches. 
Branches pledge themselves to advance the objectives of the organisation, make financial contributions to 
further those objectives and receive in return access to mutual assistance consistent with the organisation’s 
objectives. Whilst in many senses the mutuality of Branches means they are the organisation, for the 
purposes of the accounting standards the term ‘Branches’ and its meaning in terms of revenue is the same 
as the accounting term of ‘Customers’ in the standard AASB 15. 
 

(ii) Rental Income 

Rental income from investment property is recognised in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, 
over the term of the lease.  
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
b) Finance income and finance costs  

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognised as it accrues 
in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest method. 

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either finance income or finance cost 
depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position. 

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest rate basis except for debt instruments other than 
those financial assets that are recognised at fair value through profit or loss. The effective interest method 
is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over 
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net 
carrying amount on initial recognition.  

 
c) Sale of assets 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal (which is at the date the recipient 
obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss 
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of comprehensive income when the asset is 
derecognised. 

d) Affiliation fees and levies 
Affiliation fees and levies are recognised on an accrual basis and recorded as an expense in the year to 
which it relates. 

e) Employee benefits 
 

(i) Defined benefit plans 

The Association’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by 
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, 
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. 

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected 
unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Association, the recognised asset 
is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan 
or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, 
consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements. 

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/ asset, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the 
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are 
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The Association determines the net interest 
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used 
to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined 
benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the 
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related 
to defined benefit plans are recognised in surplus or deficit. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
e) Employee benefits (continued) 

 
(i) Defined benefit plans (continued) 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that 
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. The 
Association recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement 
occurs. 

(ii) Other long-term employee benefits 

The Association’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than defined benefit 
superannuation funds is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service 
in the current and prior periods plus related on-costs; that benefit is discounted to determine its present 
value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting 
date on Australian Corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Association’s 
obligations in which the benefits are expected to be paid. 

(iii) Short-term benefits 

Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries and annual leave represent present obligations resulting 
from employees’ services provided to reporting date and are calculated at undiscounted amounts and 
expensed based on remuneration wage and salary rates that the Association expects to pay as at reporting 
date including related on-costs, such as workers compensation insurance and payroll tax.  Amounts that 
are expected to be settled beyond 12 months are measured in accordance with long term benefits. 

f) Leases 
The Association assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration.  

(i) As a lessee  

The Association applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Association recognises lease liabilities to make lease 
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.  
 
Right-of-use assets  
 
The Association recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of 
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease 
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use 
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful 
lives of the assets. 
 
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Association at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects 
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. 
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.  
  



Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees’ Association 
       Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2023 

 

Page I 20  

 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
f) Leases (continued) 

 
(i) As a lessee (continued) 

 
Lease liabilities  
At the commencement date of the lease, the Association recognises lease liabilities measured at the 
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed 
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease 
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value 
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain 
to be exercised by the Association and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 
reflects the Association exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on 
an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the 
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.   
 
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Association uses the implicit the interest rate or 
incremental borrowing rate if the implicit lease rate is not readily determinable. After the commencement 
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the 
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a 
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments 
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the 
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 
 
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets  
The Association’s short-term leases are those that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the 
commencement. It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are 
below $5,000. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
f) Leases (continued) 

 
(ii) As a lessor  

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Association allocates 
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative standalone prices. 
When the Association acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance 
lease or an operating lease. 

To classify each lease, the Association makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers 
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, 
then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the 
Association considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic 
life of the asset. 

When the Association is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-
lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset 
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term 
lease to which the Association applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as 
an operating lease. 

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the Association applies AASB 15 to 
allocate the consideration in the contract. 

The Association applies the de-recognition and impairment requirements in AASB 9 to the net investment 
in the lease. The Association further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values used in 
calculating the gross investment in the lease. 

The Association recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight line 
basis over the lease term. 
 

g) Cash 

Cash is recognised at its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held 
at call with the bank, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturity of 3 months or less 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value 
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the 
statement of financial position. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

h) Financial instruments 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Association becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Financial assets 
(i) Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash 
flow characteristics and the Association’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade 
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component, the Association initially measures a 
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs. 

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it 
needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ (SPPI) on the principal 
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument 
level. 

The Association’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets 
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from 
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the 
date that the Association commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

(ii) Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in five categories: 

• (Other) financial assets at amortised cost 

• (Other) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

• Investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income 

• (Other) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

• (Other) financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
h) Financial instruments (continued) 

 
(ii) Subsequent measurement (continued) 

The Association measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

• The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in 
order to collect contractual cash flows; and 

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method 
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in surplus or deficit when the asset is 
derecognised, modified or impaired. 

The Association’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade and other receivables, term deposits 
held with the Commonwealth Bank of Australia (see note 12) and cash and cash equivalents. 

(iii) De-recognition 

A financial asset is derecognised when:  

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 

• The Association has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either: 

a) the Association has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or  
b) the Association has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Association has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of 
ownership.  

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor 
transferred control of the asset, the Association continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent 
of its continuing involvement together with associated liability. 

(iv) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial 
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
h) Financial instruments (continued) 

Impairment of financial assets 

(i) Trade receivables 

For trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component, the Association applies a simplified 
approach in calculating expected credit losses (ECLs) which requires lifetime expected credit losses to be 
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.  

Therefore, the Association does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance 
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Association has established a provision matrix that is 
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors 
and the economic environment. 

(ii) Debt instruments other than trade receivables 

For all debt instruments other than trade receivables and debt instruments not held at fair value through 
profit or loss, the Association recognises an allowance for expected credit losses using the general 
approach. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with 
the contract and all the cash flows that the Association expects to receive, discounted at an approximation 
of the original effective interest rate.  

ECLs are recognised in two stages: 

• Where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided 
for credit losses from possible default events within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).  

• Where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is 
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the debt, irrespective of the timing of the 
default (a lifetime ECL). 

The Association considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. 
However, in certain cases, the Association may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal 
or external information indicates that the Association is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual 
amounts in full. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the 
contractual cash flows. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
h) Financial instruments (continued) 

 
Financial liabilities 
 

(i) Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, at amortised cost or at fair value through profit or loss. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortised 
cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Association’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables. 

(ii) Subsequent measurement 

After initial recognition, trade payables and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in surplus or deficit when 
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the surplus or deficit. 

(iii) De-recognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Share capital 

The Association is an unincorporated registered organisation under the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009 and does not have share capital. 

Foreign currency transactions 
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Association at exchange 
rates at the dates of the transactions.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at 
the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.  The foreign 
currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the functional currency 
at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the 
amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year.   

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are 
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.  
Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using 
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.  

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in surplus or deficit. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

i) Contingent assets and liabilities 

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position but 
are reported in the relevant notes. They may arise from uncertainty as to the existence of a liability or asset 
or represent an existing liability or asset in respect of which the amount cannot be reliably measured. 
Contingent assets are disclosed when settlement is probable but not virtually certain, and contingent 
liabilities are disclosed when settlement is greater than remote. 

j) Property, plant and equipment 
 

(i) Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. The initial cost of an asset includes expenditures that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. 

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the 
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and is recognised net 
within other income/other expenses in surplus or deficit. 

(ii) Subsequent costs 

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount 
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the 
Association and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in surplus or deficit 
as incurred. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
j) Property, plant and equipment 

 
(iii) Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount 
substituted for cost, less its residual value. Depreciation is recognised in surplus or deficit on a straight-line 
or diminishing value over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment, 
to most closely reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the 
asset.  Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is 
reasonably certain that the Association will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. 

Depreciation rates (useful lives), residual values and methods are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted as appropriate. 

Depreciation rates applying to each class of depreciable asset are based on the following useful lives: 

 2023 2022 

Leasehold improvements 5 – 20 years 5 – 20 years 

Fixtures and fittings 4 – 20 years 4 – 20 years  

Motor vehicles 8 years 8 years 

   

(iv) De-recognition 

An item of land, buildings, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an 
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the surplus or deficit. 

k) Investment property 
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for 
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for 
administrative purposes. Investment properties are measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising 
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in surplus and deficit in the period in 
which they arise. Refer to note 15(b) for details of determination of fair value. 

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property. The cost 
of self-constructed investment property includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs 
directly attributable to bringing the investment property to a working condition for their intended use and 
capitalised borrowing costs. 

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising 
on de-recognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset) is included in surplus or deficit in the period in which the property is 
derecognised. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
k) Investment property (continued) 

 
When an investment property that was previously classified as property, plant and equipment is sold, any 
related amount included in the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings. When the use of a 
property changes such that it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, its fair value at the date of 
reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting. 

l) Impairment of non-financial assets 
The carrying amounts of the Association’s non-financial assets, other than investment property, are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the 
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount. A CGU is 
the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other 
assets and groups.  Impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit. The recoverable amount of an 
asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.  In assessing value in 
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or 
CGU. Where the future economic benefit of an asset is not primarily dependent on the asset’s ability to 
generate future cash flows, and the asset would be replaced if the Association were deprived of the asset, 
its value in use is taken to be its depreciated replacement cost. 

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that 
the loss has decreased or no longer exists.  An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in 
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.  An impairment loss is only reversed to the extent 
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

m) Taxation 
The Association is exempt from income tax under section 50.1 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 
however still has an obligation for Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods and Services Tax (GST). 

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except 
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority.  In these circumstances, 
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense. Receivables 
and payables are stated with the amount of GST excluded, as the Association reports to the ATO for GST 
on a cash-basis.  The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current 
asset or liability in the balance sheet. 

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis.  The GST components of cash 
flows arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are 
classified as operating cash flows. 

n) Provisions 
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Association has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
o) Fair value measurements 

A number of the Association’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, 
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.  Also, fair values of financial instruments measured 
at amortised cost are disclosed in Note 23a. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Association. The fair value of an 
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
 
The Association uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising 
the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 
 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Association 
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as investment 
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional 
standards are maintained. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Association has determined classes 
of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the 
level of the fair value hierarchy. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
4. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
p) Current versus non-current classification 

The Association presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification.  

An asset is current when it is:  

• expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; 
• held primarily for the purpose of trading;  
• expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or  
• cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period   
All other assets are classified as non-current.  

A liability is current when:  

• it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;  
• it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
• it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or  
• there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period  
The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of 
equity instruments do not affect its classification.  

The Association classifies all other liabilities as non-current 

q) Segment reporting 
An operating segment is a component of the Association that engages in business activities from which it 
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with 
any of the other Association’s other components.  All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the Association’s office holders to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the 
segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.   

r) Financial risk management 
The Association has exposure to the following risks from their use of financial instruments: 

i) Credit risk 
ii) Liquidity risk 
iii) Market risk 
iv) Operational risk  

Risk Management Framework 

The National Executive has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk 
management framework. Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced 
by the Association, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.  
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and 
the Association’s activities.  The Association, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees 
understand their roles and obligations. 

A detailed assessment of the Association’s exposure to the above risks is included in note 23.  
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
5. Events after the reporting period 

There has not been any other matter or circumstance occurring subsequent to the end of the financial year that 
has significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Association, the results of those 
operations, or the state of affairs of the Association in subsequent financial periods. 

6. Other income 
 

 
Note            2023                            2022 

 
 $ $ 

ACTU trust distributions 21 64,117 201,104 

SDA Branch reimbursements 21 575,172 1,154,860 

REST director’s fees 21 208,300 185,356 

Other  480 - 

Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets   13,939 377 

Total other income 862,008 1,541,697 

 
7. Administration expenses 

 
 2023 2022 

 
 $ $ 

Delegates travel expenses/allowances – meetings and conferences 551,054 61,460 
Conference and meeting expenses 270,602 35,847 
 Information technology support 56,463 68,442 
 Office expenses 51,155 44,685 
 Printing & photocopier 8,660 14,243 
 Subscriptions 22,317 22,020 
 Telecommunication 29,124 34,509 
 Total administration expense 989,375 281,206 
   

8. Grants or donations 
 

 
 2023 2022 

 
 $ $ 

Grants:   
               Total expensed that were $1,000 or less - - 
               Total expensed that exceeded $1,000 - - 
Donations:   
               Total expensed that were $1,000 or less - - 
               Total expensed that exceeded $1,000 253,122 1,880,521 
Total grants or donations 253,122 1,880,521 
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9. Legal costs 

 
 2023 2022 

 
 $ $ 

Litigation 1,277,679 877,909 
Other legal matters 342,211 258,856 
Total legal costs 1,619,890 1,136,765 
   

10. Cash and cash equivalents 

 
 2023 2022 

 
 $ $ 

Cash at bank  1,024,671 1,161,784 
Cash management account 24,065 23,997 
Short term deposits 64,908 63,274 

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,113,644 1,249,055 

   

11. Receivables 

 
 2023 2022 

 
 $ $ 

Other receivables:   

Accrued interest income 16,295 2,228 
Sundry debtors 293,898 137,142 
Prepayments 321,247 128,999 
Total receivables net of impairment provision 631,440 268,369 
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12. Other financial assets 
  2023 2022 

 

 

 

  $ $ 

    
Managed Funds 24,845,266 23,747,863 
Term deposits 1,500,000 4,300,000 

Total other financial assets 26,345,266 28,047,863 

 
Term deposits have stated interest rates of 4.31 percent (2022: 0.20 to 1.50 percent) and mature in 90 days or 
more. The Association’s exposure to credit and interest rate risk is disclosed in note 23. 

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Association recognised interest and distribution income of $91,942 
(2022: $885,465) from other financial assets. A fair value increment of $1,560,231 (2022: fair value decrement 
of $2,745,733) was recognised on Managed Funds at year end which has been recorded through profit and loss.  
Measurement of fair value 

Level 2 fair value – valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs 

Type Valuation technique 
Significant 

unobservable 
inputs 

Inter-relationship between 
significant unobservable 

inputs and fair value 
measurement 

Managed funds Investments in unlisted unit trusts are recorded 
at the redemption value per unit as reported by 
the investment managers of such funds. The 
Fund may make adjustments to the value 
based on considerations such as; liquidity of 
the Investee Fund or its underlying 
investments, the value date of the net asset 
value provided, or any restrictions on 
redemptions. The managed funds were valued 
on the basis of a cum distribution price at year 
end. 

Not applicable Not applicable 

The Association did not hold any financial assets with fair value measurements using significant unobservable 
inputs (level 3) at 30 June 2023 (2022: nil). 

13. Other Expenses 

 
 2023 2022 

 
 $ $ 

Consulting - general 424,470 516,721 
Consulting - media 231,236 319,873 
Research projects 53,550 198,620 
Motor vehicle running costs 22,506 18,973 
Other 15,473 12,436 
Total other expenses 747,235 1,066,623 

  



Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees’ Association 
       Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2023 

 

Page I 34  

 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 

14. Property, plant and equipment 

Cost 
Furniture and 

fittings Motor Vehicles Leasehold 
Improvements Total 

 $ $ $ $      
Balance at 1 July 2022 330,619 89,549 1,569,674 1,989,842 
Acquisitions 98,901 52,395 383,979 535,275 
Disposals (126,376) (41,039) - (167,415) 
Balance at 30 June 2023 303,144 100,905 1,953,653 2,357,702 

     
Balance at 1 July 2021 318,413 89,094 1,225,786 1,633,293 
Acquisitions 12,206 455 343,888 356,549 
Disposals - - - - 
Balance at 30 June 2022 330,619 89,549 1,569,674 1,989,842 

     
Depreciation and impairment losses     
     
Balance at 1 July 2022 231,289 60,946 643,271 935,506 
Depreciation expense for the year 46,647 18,114 141,935 206,696 
Disposals (126,376) (33,079) - (159,455) 
Balance at 30 June 2023 151,560 45,981 785,206 982,747 

     
Balance at 1 July 2021 200,556 51,563 540,464 792,583 
Depreciation expense for the year 30,733 9,383 102,807 142,923 
Disposals - - - - 
Balance at 30 June 2022 231,289 60,946 643,271 935,506 
 
Carrying amounts     
     
At 1 July 2022 99,330 28,603 926,403 1,054,336 
At 30 June 2023 151,584 54,924 1,168,447 1,374,955 

     
At 1 July 2021 117,857 37,531 685,322 840,710 
At 30 June 2022 99,330 28,603 926,403 1,054,336 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 

15. Investment Property  
 

(a)    Reconciliation of carrying amount  

 
 2023 2022 

 
 $ $ 

            Property   
            Opening balance as at 1 July  31,500,000 30,500,000 
            Capital Improvements 426,442 315,887 
            Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustment (426,442) 684,113 
            Closing balance as at 30 June  31,500,000 31,500,000 

Investment property comprises a commercial property located at 53 Queen Street, Melbourne.  The Association 
retains possession of levels 6 and 7 as its registered head office and leases the remaining floors to third parties.  
Each of the leases contains an initial non-cancellable period of a minimum of three years, with fixed percentage 
annual rent increases.  Some lease incentives were paid towards tenancy fit-outs and are being amortised over 
the period of the leases on a straight line basis.  No contingent rents are paid.  Further information about these 
leases are contained in Note 20. 

Rental income earned and received from the investment property during the year was $1,367,064 (2022: 
$1,322,687). 

Direct expenses incurred in relation to the investment properties that generated rental income during the year 
was $845,157 (2022: $753,630). During the year and as at year-end, no restrictions on the realisability of 
investment property or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal were present. The Association does 
not have any contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or for repairs, 
maintenance or enhancements. 

 (b)    Measurement of fair value 

(i)  Fair value hierarchy 

The fair value of investment property was determined by external, independent property valuers, having 
appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the 
property being valued.  The independent valuers provide the fair value of the Association’s investment property 
at least every two years.  In years where external, independent valuations are not obtained, these are 
substituted with Association management performing internal valuations utilising publicly available market data 
for properties with similar characteristics to the Association’s investment property. 

The fair value measurement for investment property of $31,500,000 was determined at 30 June 2023 by Gary 
Longden, Director and certified practising valuer of M3 Property P/L, a registered independent appraiser having 
an appropriate recognised professional qualification from Australian Property Institute and recent experience in 
the location and category of the property being valued.  The fair value measurement has been categorised as 
a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used (see Note 4(o)). 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
15. Investment Property (continued) 

(b)    Measurement of fair value (continued) 

(ii)  Level 3 fair value – valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs 

The following shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of investment property, as well 
as the significant unobservable inputs used. 

Valuation techniques: Discounted cash flow approach (2023), Discounted cash flow approach (2022) 

Discounted cash flow approach: The discounted cash flow approach involves formulating a projection of net 
income over a specified horizon, typically ten years, and discounting this cash flow including the projected 
terminal value at the end of the projection period at an appropriate rate. 

The present value of this discounted cash flow represents the Market value of the property.  

Significant unobservable inputs: 
• 2023: Discount rate 6.25%.  
• 2022: Discount rate 5.75%.  
Inter-relationship between key unobservable inputs and fair value measurement 

The estimated fair value would increase (decrease) if: 

• 2023: The discount rate was lower (higher). 
• 2022: The discount rate was lower (higher). 

 
16. Trade and Other payables 

 
 2023 2022 

Payables to other reporting units  $ $ 

SDA VIC Branch – personnel expenses 8,661 - 
SDA Qld Branch – delegate expenses 2,815 - 
SDA SA (State Union) – delegate expenses 948 - 
SDA WA (State Union) – FY23:  delegate exps, FY22: legal costs - litigation 1,436 132,490 
SDA NSW Branch – accrued legal costs - litigation 550 2,250 
Total related party payables 14,410 134,740 
   
Accrued legal costs - litigation 138,205 376,506 
Accrued legal costs - other legal matters 11,018 29,750 
PAYG withholding tax 42,063 48,040 
Tenant security deposits 62,208 60,574 
Unearned rental income - 90,437 
Other 215,042 124,224 
Total other payables 482,946 864,271  

 
Total trade and other payables are expected to be settled in:   
No more than 12 months 420,738 803,697 
More than 12 months 62,208 60,574 
Total trade and other payables 482,946 864,271 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
17. Employee Benefits 

  2023 2022 

  $ $ 
Current liability      
Office holders    
Liability for long service leave  262,674 231,128 
Liability for annual leave  98,744 81,284 
Separation and redundancies  - - 
Other  - - 

  361,418 312,412 
Employees other than office holders    
Liability for long service leave  502,016 388,129 
Liability for annual leave 

 

   

 

 580,350 507,497 
Separation and redundancies  - - 
Other  - - 
  1,082,366 895,626 

  1,443,784 1,208,038 

Non-current liability    
Employees other than office holders    
Liability for long-service leave  32,255 44,614 

  32,255 44,614 

Non-current asset    
Office holders and other employees    
Present value of funded obligations  - 2,140,561 
Fair value of plan assets - funded  - (2,468,430) 
Recognised (asset) for defined benefit obligations  - (327,869) 

The Association made contributions to the SDA (Victoria Branch) benefit superannuation plan, a sub-plan of the 
Retail Employees' Superannuation Trust, that provide defined benefit amounts for office holders and other 
employees upon retirement. The Association has determined that, in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of the defined benefit plans, and in accordance with statutory requirements (such as minimum funding 
requirements) of the plan of the respective jurisdictions, the present value of refunds or reductions in future 
contributions is not lower than the balance of the fair value of the plan assets less the total present value of 
obligations.   

On 6 December 2022, all of the members and assets of the defined benefit plan were transferred out of the 
defined benefit plan and the defined benefit plan is closed to new entrants. Therefore, present value of defined 
benefit obligation and plan assets were nil as of that date. 
 
The following tables analyse plan assets, present value of defined benefit obligations, expense recognised in 
surplus or deficit, actuarial assumptions and other information for the plan. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
17. Employee Benefits (continued) 

 
Movements in the net asset for defined benefit obligations recognised in the statement of 
financial position: 
  2023 2022 
  $ $ 
Net (asset)/liability for defined benefit obligations at 1 July  (327,869) (194,876) 
Contributions paid into the plan  (77,697) (15,194) 
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income - actuarial 
losses/(gains) 

 
342,797 (251,412) 

Expenses recognised in statement of comprehensive income   62,769 133,613 
Net (asset)/liability for defined benefit obligations at 30 June  - (327,869) 

 
Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations 

  2023 2022 

  $ $ 

      
Defined benefit obligations at 1 July  2,140,561 2,623,996 
Current service cost  41,560 141,647 
Interest cost  47,310 44,542 
Actuarial losses/(gains) recognised in other comprehensive income (see below) 313,724 (344,630) 
Benefits paid by the plan  (2,493,731) (298,131) 
Taxes, premium & expenses paid  (49,424) (26,863) 
Defined benefit obligations at 30 June  - 2,140,561 

All benefits are vested at the end of the reporting period. 

Movement in the present value of plan assets 

  2023 2022 

  $ $ 
Fair value of plan assets at 1 July  2,468,430 2,818,872 
Expected return on plan assets at discount rate  26,101 52,576 
Actuarial (losses)/gains recognised in other comprehensive income (see below) (29,073) (93,218) 
Contributions paid  77,697 15,194 
Benefits paid  (2,493,731) (298,131) 
Taxes and expenses  (49,424) (26,863) 
Fair value of plan assets at 30 June  - 2,468,430 

Expense recognised in surplus or deficit 

  2023 2022 

  $ $ 
Current service costs  41,560 141,647 
Net interest costs  21,209 (8,034) 

  62,769 133,613 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
17. Employee Benefits (continued) 

 
Re-measurements of net defined benefit liability/asset 

  2023 2022 

   $ 
      
Loss/(Gain) on defined benefit obligation  313,724 (344,630) 
(Gain)/Loss on assets  29,073 93,218 
Recognised in other comprehensive income  342,797 (251,412) 

 

Actuarial gains (and losses) recognised in other comprehensive income 

  2023 2022 

  $ $ 

      
Cumulative amount at 1 July  511,268 259,856 
Recognised during the period  (342,797) 251,412 
Cumulative amount at 30 June  168,471 511,268 

 
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total fund assets are as follows: 

  2023 2022 

      
Australian Equity  n/a 0% 
International Equity  n/a 0% 
Fixed Income  n/a 0% 
Property  n/a 0% 
Cash  n/a 100% 
Other  n/a 0% 

 

*n/a: not applicable. Defined benefit plan was closed in December 2022. 

 
Actuarial assumptions 

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages): 

  2023 2022 

      
Discount rate at 30 June  n/a 5.00% 
Future salary increases  n/a 3.00% 

 

*n/a: not applicable. Defined benefit plan was closed in December 2022. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
17. Employee Benefits (continued) 

 
Sensitivity analysis 

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) is sensitive to the assumptions set out above. The 
following table summarises how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period 
would have increased (decreased) as a result of a change in the respective assumptions by one percent. 

  2023 2022 

  $ $ 

      
Additional DBO for a 1% decrease in the discount rate  - 134,086 
Reduction in DBO for a 1% increase in the discount rate  - 120,310 

 
The above sensitivities are based on the average duration of the benefit obligation determined by the actuary as 
at 30 June 2022 and are applied to adjust the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period for the 
assumptions concerned. Whilst the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected 
under the plan, it does provide an approximation to the sensitivity of the assumptions shown. 

   Historical information  

 
2023 2022 

 
$ $ 

Present value of the defined benefit obligation - 2,140,561 

Fair value of plan assets - funded - (2,468,430) 

Recognised (asset)/liability for defined benefit obligation 
- (327,869) 

Funding 

The plan is fully funded by the Association.  The funding requirements are based on the plan fund’s actuarial 
measurement framework set out in the funding policies of the plan.  The funding is based on a separate actuarial 
valuation for funding purposes for which the assumptions may differ from the assumptions above.  Employees 
are not required to contribute to the plan. 

The Association expects to contribute $nil (2023: $179,524 ) to its defined benefit superannuation fund during 
the year ending 30 June 2024, as the fund has been closed as of 6 December 2022. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
18. Personnel Expenses 

  2023 2022 

  $ $ 
Holders of office:      

Wages and salaries  368,077 355,991 
Superannuation (including expenses related to defined benefit) 

 
 47,679 46,409 

Leave and other entitlements  49,006 26,391 
Separation and redundancies  - - 
Other employee expenses  59,683 46,330 
Total employee expenses - holders of office  524,445 475,121  

   
Employees other than office holders:    
Wages and salaries  1,807,747 1,801,525 
Superannuation (including expenses related to defined benefit) 

 
 215,596 192,262 

Leave and other entitlements  174,382 80,753 
Separation and redundancies  - - 
Other employee expenses  122,514 88,514 
Total employee expenses - employees other than office 
holders 

 
2,320,239 2,163,054 

 
   

Total employee expenses  2,844,684 2,638,175 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
19. Cash Flow Reconciliation and Information  

 
19a.    Cash Flow Reconciliation 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet to Cash Flow Statement: 

   

  
2023 2022 

  
$ $ 

Cash and cash equivalents as per:   
Cash flow statement 1,113,644 1,249,055 
Balance sheet 1,113,644 1,249,055 
Difference - - 
 

Reconciliation of surplus/(deficit) to net cash from operating 
activities: 

 
  

  2023 2022 
  $ $ 
Surplus/(deficit) for the year  (900,459) (4,598,526) 

    
Adjustments for non-cash items    
Depreciation  206,696 142,923 
Fair value movement in investment property  426,442 (684,113) 
Fair value movement in other financial assets  (1,560,231) 2,745,733 
Loss/(gain) on disposal of assets  (13,939) (377) 
Actuarial gains/(losses) recognised in equity on defined benefit plan  62,769 133,613 
Changes in assets/liabilities    
Change in accrued interest and distribution income  (14,067) 400 
Change in prepayments  (192,248) (25,613) 
Change in sundry debtors  (156,756) 3,207 
Change in defined benefit plan asset  (77,697) (15,194) 
Change in contract liability  (80,993) 1,097,707 
Change in trade and other payables  (381,325) 410,023 
Change in provisions and employee benefits  223,387 107,144 
Net cash from/(used by) operating activities  (2,458,421) (683,073) 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
19. Cash Flow Reconciliation and Information (continued) 

 
19b.    Cash Flow Information 

  2023 2022 
  $ $ 
Cash inflows 
Cash receipts from other reporting units 

 
  

SDA Newcastle    544,435 562,062 
SDA New South Wales    2,017,940 2,269,287 
SDA Queensland    1,311,959 1,432,145 
SDA South Australia    1,001,197 1,048,591 
SDA South Australia (State Union)    1,570 57,720 
SDA Tasmania    226,461 235,914 
SDA Victoria    1,720,935 1,910,890 
SDA Western Australia    963,359 1,070,067 
Total cash inflows    7,787,856 8,586,676 

      
Cash outflows 
Cash paid to other reporting units 

 
  

SDA Newcastle    4,320 - 
SDA New South Wales    46,820 17,893 
SDA Queensland    4,951 5,853 
SDA South Australia    - - 
SDA South Australia (State Union)    351,482 439,511 
SDA Tasmania    2,149 - 
SDA Victoria    109,734 183,447 
SDA Western Australia (Federal)    - 667 
SDA Western Australia (State Union)    151,654 2,423 
Total cash outflows    671,110 649,794 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
20. Contingent Liabilities, Assets and Commitments  

 
Operating lease commitments—as lessor 
The Association leases out its investment property (see note 15a) under operating leases. The future minimum lease 
income under non-cancellable leases are as follows: 

  2023 2022 

  $ $ 
   

Within one year 1,520,583 857,119 
After one year but not more than five years 2,256,387 2,474,207 
After five years - - 

  3,776,969 1,305,951 
 
Contingent liabilities 
In ordinary course of business, the Association undertakes union activities on behalf of its members which may involve 
legal costs. As at 30 June 2023, the Association has legal cost commitments in the range of $137,000 to $182,000. 
 
Furthermore, the Association has also initiated litigation on its members behalf during the year on legal matters 
relating to the underpayment of wages. The outcome of the litigation is yet to be reached, hence the extent of 
recovering legal costs incurred and the prospect of compensation in damages to the Association’s members cannot 
be reliably determined at year end. 
 

21. Related Party Disclosures 
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. 
Outstanding balances for all transactions at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in 
cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the 
year ended 30 June 2023, the association has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed 
by related parties and declared person or body (2022: $Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year 
through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.  

 
Branches 
The Association recognised from its branches the following affiliation fees which have been disaggregated by location: 

    Affiliation fees* 
      2023 2022 

    $ $ 
Revenue from contracts with customers    

SDA Newcastle    451,539 

 

373,885 
SDA New South Wales    1,717,675 1,474,802 
SDA Queensland    1,102,864 926,153 
SDA South Australia    839,423 699,889 
SDA Tasmania    187,191 154,552 
SDA Victoria    1,451,150 1,226,945 
SDA Western Australia    820,373 697,276 
    6,570,215 5,553,502 

*Affiliation fees are all sourced in Australia 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
21. Related Party Disclosures 

 

Branches (continued) 

Affiliation fees in the rules are calculated as a percentage of gross Branch membership income and paid annually 
in March for the financial year for accounting purposes. Effective from 24 November 2021, the Fair Work 
Commission ratified the National Council’s amendments to the Association rules (Rule 32) to amend the financial 
year for accounting purposes to 1 January to 31 December.  

The contract liability primarily relates to the advance consideration received from Branches for affiliation services 
relating to the service period 1 July 2023 to 31 December 2023, for which revenue is recognised over time. This 
will be recognised as revenue as affiliation services are provided over the relevant service period. 

 
    Contract Liability 

      2023 2022 
    $ $ 

      

SDA Newcastle    227,487 224,051 
SDA New South Wales    843,073 874,601 
SDA Queensland    547,060 555,804 
SDA South Australia    418,682 420,741 
SDA Tasmania    94,677 92,515 
SDA Victoria    711,843 739,307 
SDA Western Australia    401,789 418,585 
    3,244,611 3,325,604 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
21. Related Party Disclosures (continued) 

 
Branches (continued) 
The Association received from its branches the following expense reimbursements:   

2023 National 
Website 
Project  

 Industrial 
Campaigns 

No One 
Deserves A 

Serve 
Campaign  

IT Fund Election 
Donations  

 

Other TOTAL 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

        

SDA Newcastle (State Union) - - - 39,563 - 405 39,968 

SDA New South Wales - - - 146,621 - 1,723 148,344 

SDA Queensland - - - 95,141 - 3,429 98,570 

SDA South Australia - - - 72,814 - - 72,814 

SDA South Aust (State Union) - - - - - 1,427 1,427 

SDA Tasmania - - - 16,466 - 55 16,521 

SDA Victoria - - - 123,799 - 1,525 125,324 

SDA Western Australia - - - 69,876 - 2,328 72,204 

 - - - 564,280 - 10,892 575,172 

 

2022 National 
Website 
Project  

Industrial 
Campaigns 

No One 
Deserves 
A Serve 

Campaign  

IT Fund Election 
Donations 

 

Other TOTAL 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

        

SDA Newcastle (State Union) 19,935 2,500 - 38,965 1,059 405 62,864 
SDA New South Wales 81,360 10,000 - 152,105 69,285 1,036 313,786 

SDA Queensland 48,807 5,500 - 96,662 39,259 114 190,342 
SDA South Australia - - - 73,172 38,611 - 111,783 

SDA South Aust (State Union) 47,146 4,700 - - - 627 52,473 
SDA Tasmania 7,374 - - 16,090 5,864 109 29,437 

SDA Victoria 66,998 8,000 - 128,575 54,167 818 258,558 

SDA Western Australia 31,983 3,500 - 72,797 26,755 582 135,617 

 303,603 34,200 - 578,366 235,000 3,691 1,154,860 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
21. Related Party Disclosures (continued) 

 

Branches (continued) 
The amounts paid or payable by the Association to its branches for expenses incurred on its behalf: 

  2023 2022 

  $ $ 
    
SDA Newcastle & Northern    
Meeting expenses  3,927 - 
    
SDA New South Wales    
Administration expenses (postage)  161 125 
Delegates travel expenses   35,703 16,945 
Meeting expenses  2,174 - 
Litigation costs  6,230 2,250 
Postage expenses  - - 
Property, plant and equipment purchase  - 707 
Other expenses (motor vehicle running costs)  - - 
    
SDA Queensland    
Delegates travel expenses  7,316 5,321 
    
SDA South Australia (State Union)    
Meeting expenses  5,157 - 
Consulting – industrial expenses  314,373 399,555 
Delegates travel expenses  948 - 
    
SDA Tasmania    
Delegates travel expenses  1,954 - 
    
SDA Victoria    
Consulting – general expenses  529 40,000 
Delegates travel expenses  - 1,108 
Donations  - 40,000 
Meeting expenses  - - 
Personnel expenses (reimbursement of Victorian payroll tax)  117,814 98,228 

    
SDA Western Australia    
Federal Branch – Meeting expenses  - 609 
State Union – Litigation costs  - 132,490 
State Union – Delegates travel expenses 

 

 7,253 2,225 
 
The amounts owed to its branches at 30 June 2023 by the Association are included in payables to other reporting 
units in Note 16. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
21. Related Party Disclosures (continued) 

 

Affiliates 

The amounts paid or payable by the Association to its affiliates for expenses incurred: 

  2023 2022 
  $ $ 

ACTU    
Affiliation fees paid  1,467,811 1,590,745 
ACTU Levies  120,000 181,818 
Meeting expenses – attendance at conferences, forums & training  300 45 
Union Network International (UNI)    
Affiliation fees paid  983,799 870,789 
Donations – UNI-APRO Activities Fund  153,122 140,521 
Donations – UNI Global Solidarity Fund  100,000 - 
Consulting – general   16,891 14,637 
ALP National Secretariat    
Donations  - 1,000,000 
Conference and meeting expenses  4,800 1,000 
ALP NSW Branch    
Donations  - 160,000 
Conference and meeting expenses  - 909 
ALP SA Branch    
Donations  - 100,000 
Queensland Labor    
Donations  - 80,000 
Tasmanian Labor    
Donations  - 30,000 
WA Labor    
Donations  - 70,000 

    

Affiliation fee expenses incurred by the Association related to the following affiliates: 

  2023 2022 
  $ $ 

Affiliation fees    
ACTU  1,467,811 1,590,745 
Union Network International  983,799 870,789 
  2,451,610 2,461,534 

 

The Association received trust distribution income of $64,117 (2022: $201,104) from the ACTU as an affiliate.  In 
accordance with the ACTU “Constitution, Rules and Standing Orders” this was acquitted by the ACTU as additional 
affiliation fees and is included above. 

There were no amounts owed to its affiliates at 30 June 2023 by the Association. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
21. Related Party Disclosures (continued) 

 
Other related parties 

Key management personnel 

The following were key management personnel of the Association during the financial year: 

Name Position 
Michael Donovan Officer – National President 

 

 

 

 

 

Barbara Nebart  Officer – National Vice President 
Gerard Dwyer Officer – National Secretary-Treasurer  
Julia Fox Officer – National Assistant Secretary  
Bernie Smith National Executive Member  
Paul Griffin National Executive Member (until July 2022) 
Josh Peak National Executive Member 
Joel Tynan National Executive Member (from October 2022) 
Peter O’Keeffe National Executive Member (until April 2023) 
Chris Gazenbeek National Executive Member 

 
Key management personnel remuneration 

The National Secretary-Treasurer and National Assistant Secretary are salaried employees of the Association with 
Superannuation Guarantee (SG) payments made for them to superannuation funds of their choice (payments were 
made to a post-employment defined benefit superannuation fund until its closure in December 2022).  The 
Association also provides motor vehicles and parking and the National Secretary-Treasurer is provided 
accomodation when travelling to the registered National Office in Melbourne. The National President and Vice-
President receive honoraria. As the National Executive Members are not paid by the Association, there are only 4 
remunerated officer holders of the Association for the year. 

The Association pays or reimburses travel, accommodation and meal allowances for the National Officers and the 
National Executive Members whilst attending National Council and/or National Executive meetings or performing 
other Association duties, and are disclosed in the Statement of surplus or deficit in Delegate expenses/allowances 
– meetings and conferences.  The National Officers and National Executive Members are allowed to keep any 
frequent flyer points or rewards earned as a result of such travel, the value of which cannot be determined. 

Key management personnel compensation to the National Officers comprised: 

     2023 2022 

  $ $ 
Short-term employee benefits  475,110 436,908 
Post-employment benefits  60,397 60,569 
Other long-term benefits  9,145 8,733 

  544,652 506,210 

 
Note 17 discloses liabilities for annual leave and long service leave for office holders. 

  



Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees’ Association 
       Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2023 

 

Page I 50  

 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
21. Related Party Disclosures (continued) 

Other related parties (continued) 

Key management personnel remuneration (continued) 

Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no officer has entered into any material transactions with the 
Association since the end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts involving officers’ 
interests existing at year-end. 

Superannuation 

Contributions totalling $77,697 (2022: $15,194) were made to a post-employment defined benefit fund managed 
by the Retail Employees’ Superannuation Trust (“REST”) on behalf of salaried office holders and employees other 
than office holders.  This fund was closed in December 2022. 

The Association received director fees of $208,300 (2022: $185,356) from REST for the services performed by 
nominated office holders and employees employed by the Association.  These director fees are included in Other 
Income in note 6.  The directors personally receive Superannuation Guarantee (SG) payments from REST for the 
above director fees, these are disclosed in post-employment benefits for key management personnel in Note 21. 

Transactions with key management personnel and their close family members 

     2023 2022 

  $ $ 
Loans to/from key management personnel  - - 
Other transactions with key management personnel 

 

 
 

 - - 

  - - 

 
22. Auditor’s Remuneration 

 
2023 2022 

 
$ $ 

Audit services    

Auditors of the Association    
      KPMG Australia: 47,823 44,552 

Audit, review and compilation of financial reports 47,823 44,552 
Other services   

Auditors of the Association   
     KPMG Australia: 3,322 3,105 
               Other assurance services 3,322 3,105 
Total auditors’ remuneration 51,145 47,657 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
23. Financial Instruments 

 
23a. Categories of Financial Instruments 

Financial assets 2023 2022 
 $ $ 
Amortised cost:   
Cash and cash equivalents 1,113,644 1,249,055 
Receivables 631,440 268,369 
Other financial assets 1,500,000 4,300,000 
Total financial assets at amortised cost 3,245,084 5,817,424 
   
Other financial assets – managed funds 24,845,266 23,747,863 
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 24,845,266 23,747,863 
Carrying amount of financial assets 28,090,350 29,565,287 

 
Financial liabilities 2023 2022 
 $ $ 
Other financial liabilities:   
Trade and other payables 482,946 864,271 
Carrying amount of financial liabilities 482,946 864,271 

 
  23b. Net Income and Expense from Financial Assets 

 2023 2022 
 $ $ 
   
Financial assets at amortised cost   
Interest income – cash and cash equivalents 67 2 
Interest income – other financial assets 41,582 8,191 
Total income from financial assets at amortised cost 41,649 8,193 
   
Interest income and distribution – other financial assets 50,360 877,274 
Net gain/(loss) on fair value – other financial assets 1,560,231 (2,745,733) 
Total income/ (expense) from financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss 

1,610,591 (1,868,459) 

   
Total income/ (expense) from financial assets 1,652,240 (1,860,266) 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
23. Financial Instruments (continued)  

 
23c. Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Association if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Association’s receivables from customers and other financial assets.  

The following table illustrates the entity’s gross exposure to credit risk, excluding any collateral or credit 
enhancements 
 

  2023 2022 

Financial assets   $ $ 
Trade and other receivables    631,440 268,369 
Cash and cash equivalents    1,113,644 1,249,055 
Other financial assets   26,345,266 28,047,863 
Total   28,090,350 29,565,287 

     
Receivables 
The Association’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer or 
tenant.  Credit evaluations are performed on all tenants of the investment property prior to the signing of a lease 
agreement and security deposits are required by way of bank guarantees or cash, to be held for the term of all 
leases.  None of the Association’s receivables are past due (2022: Nil) and based on historic default rates and the 
minimal credit risk, the Association believes no impairment allowance is necessary.  None of the tenants were in 
arrears at the balance sheet date and there is no indication to management that any of the tenants present a 
significant credit risk. All receivables are with tenants in the Australian geographical region and therefore no 
impairment loss has been recognised at balance date (2022: no impairment loss). 

 
 

30 June 2022 Trade and other receivables 
  Days past due 
  

Current 
 

<30 days 
30-60 
days 61-90 days 

 
>91 days 

 
Total 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Expected credit loss rate -% -% -% -% -% -% 
Estimate total gross carrying 
amount at default 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Expected credit loss - - - - - - 

  

 
30 June 2023 Trade and other receivables 
  Days past due 
  

Current 
 

<30 days 
30-60 
days 61-90 days 

 
>91 days 

 
Total 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Expected credit loss rate -% -% -% -% -% -% 
Estimate total gross carrying 
amount at default - - - - - - 

Expected credit loss - - - - - - 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
23. Financial Instruments (continued)  

 
23c. Credit Risk (continued) 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
The Association held cash and cash equivalents of $1,113,644 at 30 June 2023 (2022: $1,249,055), which 
represents its maximum credit exposure on these assets. The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and 
financial institution counterparties which are located in Australia, currently the CBA with a current long term credit 
rating of Aa3 (Moody’s Investor Services). 

Other financial assets 

The other financial assets are all bank bills and term deposits issued by the Commonwealth Bank of Australia and 
the Association believes no impairment allowance is necessary.   

The Association’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position at 30 
June 2023 and 2022 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in Note 23c.  
 
23d. Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Association will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its 
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.  The Association’s approach to 
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities 
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to 
the Association’s reputation.  

The Association prepares budgets and cash flow forecasts, which assists it in monitoring cash flow requirements 
and optimising its cash return on investments. Typically the Association ensures that it has sufficient cash on 
demand to meet expected operational expenses for a period of at least 120 days, the maximum term of its primary 
financial assets being term deposits.  This excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot 
reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.  

The carrying amount of the Association’s financial liabilities is represented by trade and other payables (note 16).  
The carrying amounts approximate contractual cash flows and all are due in 3 months or less (2022: 3 months or 
less).  The Association has adequate financial assets to meet these liabilities and assesses liquidity risk as minimal.  

Contractual maturities for financial liabilities 2023 
 

 
On Demand 

< 1 year 
$ 

1– 2 years 
$ 

2– 5 years 
$ 

>5 years 
$ 

Total 
$ 

Trade and other payables - 482,946 - - - 482,946 
Total  - 482,946 - - - 482,946 
 
Contractual maturities for financial liabilities 2022 
 

On Demand 
< 1 year 

$ 
1– 2 years 

$ 
2– 5 years 

$ 
>5 years 

$ 
Total 

$ 
Trade and other payables - 864,271 - - - 864,271 
Total  - 864,271 - - - 864,271 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
23. Financial Instruments (continued)  

 
23e. Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity 
prices will affect the Association’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  The objective of 
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while 
optimising the return. 

Currency risk 
The Association has limited exposure to currency risks on International Fund transactions (international affiliation 
fees and donations) that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency, being the Australian 
dollar (AUD).  The currencies in which these transactions primarily are denominated are Swiss Francs (CHF), 
Singapore dollars (SGD) and American dollars (USD). The Association uses at its discretion forward exchange 
contracts (typically 1-3 months) to hedge its currency risk, with maturity dates the same as the due dates of the 
International Fund transactions. At reporting date there were no forward exchange contracts in place. 

Interest rate risk 

The Association’s interest rate risk arises from its investments in bank bills, term deposits and cash management 
accounts.  Bank bills and term deposits are issued at fixed rates for terms of between 30 and 180 days.  The 
Association maintains a number of different bank bills and term deposits maturing at regular intervals to smooth 
fluctuations in interest rates being offered.  The majority of cash reserves are held in term deposits, with cash 
management bank accounts (with variable interest rates) used to provide liquidity funds at call. 

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Association’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:   

Sensitivity analysis of the interest rate risk that the Association is exposed to for 2023 

Given the recent increase in interest rates throughout Australia, a sensitivity analysis on the interest rate impact 
based on a movement of 300 basis points has been assessed on the Association’s financial assets. 

 Change in 
risk variable 
% 

Effect on 
 Risk 

variable 
Surplus and 

deficit 
Equity 

  $ $ 
Financial assets 

 
   

Cash and cash equivalents Interest rate 300bp increase 33,409 33,409 
Other financial assets Interest rate 300bp increase 790,358 790,358 

   

Sensitivity analysis of the interest rate risk that the Association is exposed to for 2022 

 Change in 
risk variable 

% 

Effect on 
 Risk 

variable 
Surplus and 

deficit 
Equity 

  $ $ 
Financial assets 

 
   

Cash and cash equivalents Interest rate 200bp increase 24,981 24,981 
Other financial assets   Interest rate 200bp increase 560,957 560,957 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
23. Financial Instruments (continued)  

 
23f. Operational Risk 
Operational risk 
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the 
Association’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, 
market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted 
standards of corporate behaviour.  Operational risks arise from all of the Association’s operations. The 
Association’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage 
to the Association’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative 
and creativity. 

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is 
assigned to senior management within the Association.  This responsibility is supported by the development of 
overall Association standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas: 

• Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of 
transactions; 

• Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions; 
• Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements; 
• Documentation of controls and procedures; 
• Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and 

procedures to address the risks identified; 
• Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action; 
• Development of contingency plans; 
• Training and professional development; 
• Ethical and business standards; 
• Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective. 

 

Capital management 

The Association’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain member, creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the union’s activities.  The National Executive monitors the return 
on capital and seeks to maintain a conservative position between higher returns and the advantages and security 
afforded by a sound capital position.  There were no changes in the Association’s approach to capital management 
during the year, and the Association is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 

24. Fair Value Measurement 
 
24a.  Financial Assets and Liabilities 

 
Management of the Association assessed that the fair values of cash, receivables, trade payables, and other 
current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 
 
24b.  Financial and non-financial assets and liabilities fair value hierarchy  
 
The following table provides an analysis of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities that are measured at 
fair value, by fair value hierarchy. 
 
Fair value hierarchy – 30 June 2023 
 

Assets measured at fair 
value 

Date of 
valuation 

Level 1 
$ 

Level 2 
$ 

Level 3 
$ 

Investment property 30 June 2023 - - 31,500,000 
Other financial assets – 
managed funds 

30 June 2023 - 24,845,266 - 

Total assets measured at fair 
value 

 - 24,845,266 31,500,000 

 
Fair value hierarchy – 30 June 2022 
 

Assets measured at fair value 
2021 

Date of 
valuation 

Level 1 
$ 

Level 2 
$ 

Level 3 
$ 

Investment property 30 June 2022 - - 31,500,000 
Other financial assets – 
managed funds 

30 June 2022 - 23,747,863 - 

Total assets measured at fair 
value 

 - 23,747,863 31,500,000 

Refer to note 12 and note 15(b) for further detail over fair value measurement of other financial assets and the 
investment property respectively.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Shop, Distributive & Allied Employees’ Association 
       Annual Financial Report as at 30 June 2023 

 

Page I 57  

 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 
 

25. Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 
In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the attention of 
members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which reads as follows: 

Information to be provided to members or Commissioner: 

1. A member of a reporting unit, or the Commissioner, may apply to the reporting unit for specified 
prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making the 
application. 

 
2. The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in which, 

the information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the application 
is given to the reporting unit. 

 
3. A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1). 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

 

To the members of Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' Association 

Report on the audit of the Financial Report 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the Financial Report of 
Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' 
Association (the Association). 

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial 
Report of the Association presents fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the 
Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees’ 
Association at 30 June 2023, and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for 
the year then ended, in accordance with: 

• the Australian Accounting Standards; and 

• other requirements imposed by the 
reporting guidelines and Part 3 of Chapter 
8 of the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act).  

The Financial Report comprises: 

• Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023. 

• Statement of Surplus or Deficit and Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, and Statement 
of Cash Flows for the year then ended. 

• Notes including a summary of significant accounting 
policies. 

• Other explanatory information including the Committee of 
Management Statement, Officer Declaration Statement 
and the Expenditure Report required under Subsection 
255(2A). 

 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of 
the Financial Report section of our report. 

We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) 
that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Report in Australia. We have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

Restriction on use  

The Financial Report has been prepared to assist the Committee of Management of the Shop, Distributive and 
Allied Employees’ Association in complying with the financial reporting requirements of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

As a result, the Financial Report and this Auditor’s Report may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion 
is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Our report is intended solely for the Committee of Management and members of the Shop, Distributive and 
Allied Employees' Association and should not be used by parties other than the Committee of Management and 
members of the Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' Association. We disclaim any assumption of 
responsibility for any reliance on this report, or on the Financial Report to which it relates, to any person other 
than the Committee of Management and members of Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' Association or 
for any other purpose than that for which it was prepared. 
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Other Information 

Other Information is financial and non-financial information in Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees' 
Association’s annual reporting which is provided in addition to the Financial Report and the Auditor’s Report. The 
Committee of Management are responsible for the Other Information.  

The Other Information we obtained prior to the date of this Auditor’s Report was the Operating Report.  

Our opinion on the Financial Report does not cover the Other Information and, accordingly, we do not express an 
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Financial Report, our responsibility is to read the Other Information. In doing 
so, we consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Report or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

We are required to report if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, and 
based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained prior to the date of this 
Auditor’s Report we have nothing to report. 

Responsibilities of the Committee of Management for the Financial Report 

The Committee of Management is responsible for: 

• the presentation and fair presentation of the Financial Report in accordance with the financial reporting 
requirements of Part 3 of Chapter 8 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009;  

• implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a Financial Report that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and 

• assessing the Association's ability to continue as a going concern and whether the use of the going concern 
basis of accounting is appropriate. This includes disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate Association or to 
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report 

Our objective is:  

• to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Report as a whole is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;  

• to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes our opinion.  

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the 
Financial Report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.  
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We also: 

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Report, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the Audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the registered Association’s internal control.

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Committee of Management.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Committee of Management’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the registered Association’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our Auditor’s Report to the related disclosures in the Financial Report or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our Auditor’s Report. However, future events or conditions may cause the registered
Association to cease to continue as a going concern.

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Report, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Report represents the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Committee of Management of the registered Association regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

I declare that I am an auditor registered under the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

Opinion 

I declare that, as part of the audit of the financial year ended 30 June 2023, the Committee of 
Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the Shop, Distributive 
and Allied Employees’ Association’s financial report is appropriate. 

KPMG 

Amanda Bond 

Partner 

Tower Two, Collins Square,  
727 Collins Street, Melbourne 
12 September 2023 

Registered Auditor – Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, #AA2019/11
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Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Members of the 

Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees’ Association 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit of Shop, Distributive and Allied Employees’ 
Association for the financial year ended 30 June 2023 there have been: 

i. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

KPMG 

Amanda Bond 

Partner 

Tower Two, Collins Square,  

727 Collins Street, Melbourne 

12 September 2023 

Registered Auditor – Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, #AA2019/11 



 

 

 

Page I 62  

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page has been left intentionally blank 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Page I 63  

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page has been left intentionally blank 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Page I 64  

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	For the year ended 30 June 2023
	1. Membership
	2. Committee of management
	3. Affiliations & Directorships
	4. Principal activities
	4. Principal activities (continued)
	5. SDA Report to the Workplace Gender Equality Agency
	6. Superannuation Trustees
	7. Information to be provided to Members or the Commissioner
	For the year ended 30 June 2023
	1. Reporting entity
	2. Basis of preparation
	2. Basis of preparation (continued)
	3.
	3. New Australian Accounting Standards
	4. Significant accounting policies
	4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
	4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
	4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
	4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
	4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
	4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
	4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
	4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
	4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
	4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
	4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
	4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
	4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
	5. Events after the reporting period
	6. Other income
	7. Administration expenses
	8. Grants or donations
	9. Legal costs
	10. Cash and cash equivalents
	11. Receivables
	12. Other financial assets
	13. Other Expenses
	14. Property, plant and equipment
	15. Investment Property
	15. Investment Property (continued)
	16. Trade and Other payables
	17. Employee Benefits
	17. Employee Benefits (continued)
	17. Employee Benefits (continued)
	17. Employee Benefits (continued)
	18. Personnel Expenses
	19. Cash Flow Reconciliation and Information
	19. Cash Flow Reconciliation and Information (continued)
	20. Contingent Liabilities, Assets and Commitments
	21. Related Party Disclosures
	21. Related Party Disclosures
	21. Related Party Disclosures (continued)
	21. Related Party Disclosures (continued)
	21. Related Party Disclosures (continued)
	21. Related Party Disclosures (continued)
	21. Related Party Disclosures (continued)
	22. Auditor’s Remuneration
	23. Financial Instruments
	23. Financial Instruments (continued)
	23. Financial Instruments (continued)
	23. Financial Instruments (continued)
	23. Financial Instruments (continued)
	24. Fair Value Measurement
	25. Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009



